

2018-2022 CONSOLIDATED PLAN & 2021 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN AMENDMENT I

HOME-ARP ALLOCATION PLAN

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

City of Anniston
Community Development Department
4309 McClellan Blvd
Anniston, AL 36206

Table of Contents

Introduction	3
Consultation	3
List the organizations consulted, and summarize the feedback	
received from these entities	4
Public Participation	5
Needs Assessment and Gaps Analysis	7
Homeless Populations	12
Individuals and Families at Risk of Homelessness	12
Fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence or human trafficking	13
Residents living in housing instability or in unstable housing situations	s13
HOME-ARP Activities	17

Introduction

In September 2021, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development announced the allocation of \$5,551,090.00 million to the City of Anniston for a new grant called the Home Investment Partnerships Grant American Relief Plan (HOME-ARP). The purpose of HOME-ARP funds is to provide homelessness assistance and supportive services through several eligible activities. Eligible activities include acquisition and development of non-congregate shelter, tenant based rental assistance, supportive services, HOME-ARP rental housing, administration and planning, and nonprofit operating and capacity building assistance. A certain portion of HOME-ARP funds must assist people in HOME-ARP "qualifying populations", which include:

- Sheltered and unsheltered homeless populations
- Those currently housed populations at risk of homelessness
- Those fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence or human trafficking
- Other families requiring services or housing assistance or to prevent homelessness
- Those at greatest risk of housing instability or in unstable housing situations

To receive funding, the City must develop and submit to HUD a HOME-ARP Allocation Plan, which describes the distribution of HOME-ARP funds and identifies any preferences for eligible activities. The development of the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan must also be informed through stakeholder consultation and community engagement. The following is the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan.

Consultation

Summarize the consultation process.

The City partners with public and private entities, which several were consulted with during the development of the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan. These consulted stakeholders have relevant knowledge that can speak to the needs, service gaps, and potential activities that would best benefit qualified populations. Stakeholders consulted included those who work with families or individuals experiencing or at-risk of homelessness, fleeing domestic violence, and other vulnerable qualifying populations.

In the development of the allocation plan, the City consulted with stakeholders and asked for their input concerning the HOME-ARP grant, eligible activities, and the proposed budget. Stakeholders articulated their gap in services and/housing needs by providing written and verbal input. The City has synthesized feedback from participants and the following table will provide summaries of the feedback received. The City will continue to meet with stakeholders throughout the implementation of the HOME-ARP activities in an effort to assess the ongoing needs of stakeholders' clients. The City will also strive to collaborate with stakeholders to develop and effectuate strategies that will help end chronic homelessness.

List the organizations consulted, and summarize the feedback received from these entities.

Agencies/Organizations Consulted

Agencies/Organizations	Type of	Method of	Feedback
Consulted	Agency/Organizations	Consultation	1 eedback
The Right Place	Homeless Services	Needs Assessments	Affordable Income-based housing and shelter: Service gaps in Calhoun County include shortage of affordable income-based housing and no shelter causing many low-income families to face eviction and struggle with homelessness. With no shelter, that causes them to remain on the street.; Income-based housing, supportive services, and shelter would best benefit qualifying populations.
Anniston Housing Authority	Public Housing	Needs Assessments	Public housing stock is decreasing due to property age and need of repair with very little redevelopment due to funding allocations. Service gaps: Affordable Housing. Potential activities to benefit qualified populations: Affordable Housing to decrease the homeless population.
All Saints for Concern	Homeless Services	Needs Assessments	Need more homeless supportive services. Service gaps in limited resources.
Community Enabler	Homeless Services	Needs Assessments	Need more funding for rental assistance, Service gap: limited funding.
Gadsden/Northeast Alabama COC	Homeless Services	Needs Assessments	Service gaps in bed available for homeless and supportive services.

Table 1: Agencies/Organizations Consulted

Public Participation

Describe the public participation process, including information about and the dates of the public comment period and public hearing(s) held during the development of the plan:

- Public comment period: December 29, 2021 January 14, 2022
- Public hearing: January 6, 2022

The City held one public hearing for the consultation with citizens, municipal officials, non-profit agencies, public housing agencies, private developers, governmental agencies, and the Continuum of Care in preparation for the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan.

During the public hearing, City staff discussed the development of the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan, which incorporated information and discussion of community needs and eligible activities related to HOME-ARP, along with an opportunity for the public to provide comments on the proposed budget and activities. list of eligible HOME-ARP activities and the City's proposed HOME-ARP budget was also presented. The public hearing was held on Thursday, January 6, 2022.

The public notice for the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan was published in the Anniston Star Newspaper on Wednesday, December 29, 2021 in English. The public comment period on the Draft HOME-ARP Allocation Plan coincided with the public hearing, beginning December 29, 2021 and ending on January 14, 2022.

Describe any efforts to broaden public participation:

In an attempt to increase public participation, the City actively maintains communication with local nonprofits and housing developers and will adhere to the following actions to improve citizen participation:

Actions to improve participation

- Conduct public meetings in various communities throughout the City to ensure that meetings are held at a convenient location for residents of the City and/or virtually;
- Conduct workshops at various locations throughout the City; provide ADA accessibility for all persons with disabilities; and provide interpretation for limited

English proficiency clientele;

- Use electronic and print media to solicit public participation through various media outlets. This includes sending mass emails to City employees, nonprofit organizations, and local businesses; and posting information on the City's Community Development website;
- Translate public notices and related materials for limited English proficiency clientele:
- Review and respond to all citizen comments and incorporate such comments in the Action Plan, as applicable;
- Analyze the impact of Action Plan program activities on neighborhood residents, particularly low and moderate-income persons;
- Accepts any comments or views of residents received in writing, or orally at a public hearing, during the preparation of the HOME-ARP allocation plan.

Summarize the comments and recommendations received through the public participation process:

Some of the needs highlighted during the Needs Assessment:

- Lack of affordable housing
- Aging stock of available housing
- Need more funding for supportive services and case management
- Limited resources
- Need more homeless bed and services
- High Rental Rates
- Lack of access to supportive services
- Overcrowding & Cost Burdens

Summarize any comments or recommendations not accepted and state the reasons why:

All comments were accepted.

Needs Assessment and Gaps Analysis

To assess the unmet needs of HOME-ARP qualifying populations, the City evaluated the size and demographic composition of those populations. In addition, the City also identified gaps within its current shelter and housing inventory, as well as the service delivery system. In the needs assessment and gaps analysis, utilized current data, including Comprehensive Housing Affordability Data (CHAS), 2020 Point in Time Count (PIT Count), 2020 CoC Housing Inventory Count (HIC), or other data available data sources. The following information includes the basis for the Needs Assessment and gap analysis for HOME-ARP qualified populations.

Homeless Needs Inventory and Gap Analysis Table

Homeless													
	Current Inventory					Homeless Population				Gap Analysis			
	Family		Family Adults Only Vets HH leas		Family HH (at least 1 child)	Adult HH (w/o child) Vets	/ets Victims of DV	Family		Adults Only			
	# of Beds	# of Units	# of Beds	# of Units	# of Beds					# of Beds	# of Units	# of Beds	# of Units
Emergency Shelter	29	13	86	0	0								
Transitional Housing	4	4	13	0	0								
Permanent Supportive Housing	5	2	45	0	0								
Other Permanent						2	5						

Housing										
Sheltered			6	47	0	12				
Homeless			0	47	U	12				
Unsheltered			3	171	13	14				
Homeless			3	171	13	14				
Current Gap							11	223	13	26

Data Sources: 1. Gadsden/Northeast Alabama COC 2020 Point in Time Count (PIT); 2. Gadsden/Northeast Alabama Continuum of Care Housing Inventory Count (HIC);

Table 2: Homeless Needs Inventory and Gap Analysis Table

Housing Needs Inventory and Gap Analysis Table

Non-Homeless							
14011-1 IOIIICICSS							
	Current Inventory	Level of Need	Gap Analysis				
	# of Units	# of Households	# of Households				
Total Rental Units	11,172	5,707	-5,465				
Rental Units Affordable to HH at 30% AMI (At-Risk of Homelessness)		1,030					
Rental Units Affordable to HH at 50% AMI (Other Populations)		1,972					
0%-30% AMI Renter HH w/ 1 or more severe housing problems (At-Risk of Homelessness)		1,780					
30%-50% AMI Renter HH w/ 1 or more severe housing problems (Other Populations)		925					
Current Gaps			-5,465				

Data Sources: 1. American Community Survey (ACS); 2. Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS); National Low Income Housing Coalition Out of Reach Report 2021: Anniston Alabama

Table 3: Housing Needs Inventory and Gap Analysis Table

The supply of rentals has increased between 2010 and 2019 by a little over 2,500 units. There were 8,641 occupied units paying rent in 2010 and 11,172 occupied units paying rent in 2019. The median monthly rent in 2010 was \$586 and increased to \$627 per month in 2019. The National Low Income Housing Coalition's "Out of Reach" 2021 Annual Report calculates the amount of money a household must earn in order to afford a rental unit based on the number of bedrooms in a rental unit at the Fair Market Rent (FMR), consistent with HUD's affordability standard of paying no more than 30% of

income for housing costs. Data is presented in the Renter Affordability table for the Anniston-Oxford Jacksonville Metro Statistical Area (MSA).

As noted in the 2021 Out of Reach Report, the NLIHC estimates that the median income for a renter in the Anniston-Oxford Jacksonville MSA is \$29,590. The Area's Fair Market Rent (FMR) for a two-bedroom apartment is \$723 and in order to afford this level of rent and utilities, without paying more than 30% of income on housing. In order to afford a two-bedroom housing unit without spending more than 30 percent of one's income on rent, one would need to work at a minimum of 77 hours per week or maintain at least 1.4 full-time jobs in the City.

Describe the size and demographic composition of qualifying populations within the PJ's boundaries:

HUD requires HOME-ARP funds be used to primarily benefit individuals and families in specified HOME-ARP "qualifying populations." Qualifying populations include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Sheltered and unsheltered homeless populations
- Those currently housed populations at risk of homelessness
- Those fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence or human trafficking
- Other families requiring services or housing assistance or to prevent homelessness
- Those at greatest risk of housing instability or in unstable housing situations

Homeless Populations

In accordance with HUD's definition of homeless under the HOME-ARP grant, the City will consider a homeless family or individual to generally include:

- An individual or family who lacks a permanent and adequate permanent home
- A person or family who will imminently lose their permanent home due to a lack of resources or support
- A youth under the age of 25, even if accompanied by an adult, that does not have a permanent home

The City coordinates integrated grant funded programs with mainstream services for which persons that are homeless or at-risk of homelessness may be eligible. Mainstream services include; housing programs, health programs, social services, employment programs, education programs and youth programs. Employment

programs are a pivotal part in self-sufficiency and long-term housing sustainability. Shelters and human service providers are limited in their capacity to resolve the problem of homelessness unless due to the multiple issues of causation and the amount of funding available.

Individuals and Families at Risk of Homelessness

HUD defines those at risk of homelessness as individuals and families who have an income below 30% of the area median income (AMI), do not have sufficient resources or support networks to prevent them from becoming homeless, or live with instability, like moving two or more times during the last 60 days due to economic reasons.

Using HUD's 2014-2018 CHAS data, the City of Anniston has 1,635 households with incomes at or below 30% AMI, which is 5% of total households. Almost all households with incomes at or below 30% AMI are renter households. As shown in Table 3 above, there are approximately 1,030 renter households that earn 30% AMI or under and have one or more housing problems, which could include housing cost burden, overcrowding, lack of kitchen facilities, or lack of plumbing facilities. These households are considered to be at risk of becoming homeless.

Fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence or human trafficking

For HOME-ARP, this population includes any individual or family who is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or human trafficking. It includes cases where an individual or family reasonably believes that there is a threat of imminent harm from further violence due to dangerous or life-threatening conditions that relate to violence against the individual or a family member, including a child, that has either taken place within the individual's or family's primary nighttime residence or has made the individual or family afraid to return or remain within the same dwelling unit. There are currently 1 domestic violence and abuse shelters program in Anniston, AL with 1 offering a hotline and 1 offering emergency shelter. Outside of this city and still nearby, residents can also find help at these 5 domestic violence and abuse shelters and programs in places like Oxford, Cedartown, and Carrollton.

Residents living in housing instability or in unstable housing situations

HOME-ARP qualifying populations also include other populations who have previously qualified as homeless, are currently housed with temporary or emergency assistance, and who need additional housing assistance or supportive services to avoid a return to

homelessness. In addition, HUD defines those at greatest risk of housing instability as households that have an annual income less than 30% AMI and are experiencing severe cost burden or have an income less than 50% AMI and meet a certain condition, like living in someone else's home or living in a hotel due to an economic hardship.

Many renters in the City experience varied housing challenges. A total of 41.1% of all renters have housing problems or severe housing problems. In CHAS data, HUD defines housing problems as a household that has one or more of the following: lacking a kitchen or plumbing, having more than one person per room, or being housing cost burdened at 30% of more. Of these problems, housing costs negatively impact most renters whose household income is at or below 50% AMI.

The Alabama Housing Finance Authority's Emergency Rental Assistance Program launched in February 2021 and as of November 30, 2021 is still accepting applications for assistance to receive rent assistance because they were financial impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, experienced housing instability, and whose household income was at or below 80% AMI. This shows the extreme additional need in Alabama for rental assistance and wrap around or supportive services to assist households who are living in housing instability or that have recently received housing assistance due to COVID-19 impacts.

Describe the unmet housing and service needs of qualifying populations, including but not limited to:

- Sheltered and unsheltered homeless populations;
- Those currently housed populations at risk of homelessness;
- Other families requiring services or housing assistance or to prevent homelessness; and,
- Those at greatest risk of housing instability or in unstable housing situations:

Many of the needs of the qualifying populations are similar and include the need for a flexible response system, available housing that is affordable, wrap around services, and supportive services or assistance that could prevent homelessness or greater housing instability. The following reviews the needs of each qualifying population.

Homeless Populations

People experiencing unsheltered homelessness are at great risk of continued harm due to higher rates of morbidity and mortality resulting from pre-existing health conditions, exposure to the elements, lack of access to healthcare, and elevated rates of hospitalizations with longer, mor complex hospital stays. Long periods of living without shelter also put individuals at a greater risk of social isolation and the chance of victimization. The process of resolving unsheltered homelessness is much more complicated and takes longer compared to that for people receiving crisis shelter.

It is important to connect people to permanent housing with the right level of services to ensure their success. Housing options must be flexible, client-centered, easily accessible and paired with support services necessary to help clients remain in housing for the long-term. Returning to homelessness after a housing placement is retraumatizing for the families and an inefficient use of assistance resources.

Individuals and Families at Risk of Homelessness

Individuals and families at risk of homelessness may need housing assistance that could vary from eviction assistance, diversion assistance, or rent and utility assistance in addition to other types of supportive services. Households who need assistance with maintaining or regaining housing to prevent homelessness will benefit from targeted services, like diversion services. However, diversion services, for instance require specialized outreach and engagement services targeted to high-risk populations and geographies to ensure people and communities at highest risk for homelessness are engaged with housing supports before experiencing literal homelessness. Services that may be needed to assist individual and families at risk of homelessness include

- Short-term subsidies to defray rent and utility arrearages for families that have received eviction or utility termination notices or are experiencing a hardship that may lead to homelessness
- Security deposits and first month's rent to permit homeless families to move into their own apartment
- Light case management services geared towards problem solving and rapid resolution for people receiving diversion services
- Mortgage payments
- Rapid resolution case management and/or mediation services

Fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence or human trafficking

There are only 1 independently organized shelter throughout the City that assist domestic violence victims. their family members. In addition housing accommodations, there are varies additional services provided such as counseling and advocacy assistance. Domestic violence or human trafficking survivors often lack easy access to short-term shelter and quick access to medical and psychological services. In addition, there are only informal networks to connect survivors to job opportunities. Without economic independence, many survivors are caught in abusive relationships and the gains they make with traditional social services are not fully realized. Creating better access to short-term shelter and housing as well as increasing the supportive services available could help stabilize this qualifying population.

Residents living in housing instability or in unstable housing situations

Residents who have been previously homeless or are currently using some type of rental assistance may need the assistance to continue for a short or long period of time. Funding existing services and housing assistance programs is important to the housing stability of these individuals and families. In addition, the City and the surrounding region has a lack of quality affordable housing available for residents in need causing cost burdens leading to housing instability. There is also a need to assist residents living in unstable housing situations increase their income, build savings, and acquire assets through additional supportive services in the community.

Identify and consider the current resources available to assist qualifying populations, including congregate and non-congregate shelter units, supportive services, TBRA, and affordable and permanent supportive rental housing:

The City of Anniston receives an annual allocation of a little over \$964,000 in federal formula grant funding such as the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and the HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Grant. The City utilizes this grant funding to assist families with obtaining affordable homes, supportive services, rental assistance, emergency shelter and other services. These services can and often benefit qualifying populations. Although the City uses CDBG to fund public services to the greatest extent possible, which can help stabilize individuals and families by providing services like healthcare, childcare, job training, and homeless service; however, there is a cap of 15% of the total grant amount of CDBG that can be used for public services.

The City of Anniston will continue to support local non-profits such as The Right Place, Community Enabler, St. Michael's Clinic, and All Saints Interfaith Center addressing transitional housing. Although, the City of Anniston does not receive its own ESG allocation; the city maintains steady support by leveraging its CDBG allocation to provide foundational support to these organizations. These organization are eligible to receive ESG support through the State of Alabama who receives a direct allocation to provide essential services and operations to emergency shelters and transitional housing facilities.

The City actively participates in the regional CoC serving northeast Alabama, provides funding support to address service needs, and coordinates care with local service providers addressing homeless needs. The City of Anniston is a participating jurisdiction in the Homeless Coalition of Northeast Alabama (HCNEA). This funding helps to keep formerly homeless people housed. The CoC Program is designed to:

- Promote community-wide commitment to the goal of ending homelessness
- Provide funding for efforts by nonprofit providers to quickly rehouse homeless individuals and families while minimizing the trauma and dislocation caused to homeless individuals, families, and communities by homelessness
- Promote access to and effect utilization of mainstream programs by homeless individuals and families
- Optimize self- sufficiency among individuals and families experiencing homelessness

Identify any gaps within the current shelter and housing inventory as well as the service delivery system:

The City regularly collaborates with the Homeless Coalition of Northeast Alabama to help individuals, children, and families facing housing crises. The City works closely with CoC member organizations to provide foundational support for these organizations to be able to continue to provide needed services to the residents of the Anniston community. The coordination between the City and the regional CoC is imperative to assess the needs of homeless and low-income families in avoiding homelessness, addresses the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs, and helps both homeless and chronically homeless make the transition to permanent housing and independent living. The need for transitional and permanent housing is a critical need in

the City of Anniston. Members of the COC noted the following strengths and gaps in the City's institutional delivery system:

Strengths:

• High level of coordination amongst human service organizations

Gaps:

- Lack of transportation and job services
- Increase of community based mental health and substance abuse services
- Lack of rental assistance
- Lack of alcohol drug treatment facilities
- Not enough resources or financial assistance for mortgage assistance or utility, counseling and financial services.
- No tracking of data for chronically homeless men and women who reside under the bridges and in the woods.
- Limited number of shelters and little to no resources for elderly
- Need more shelters and affordable housing Consolidated Plan Availability of services targeted to homeless

Identify the characteristics of housing associated with instability and an increased risk of homelessness if the PJ will include such conditions in its definition of "other populations" as established in the HOME-ARP Notice:

The number one indicator of households falling into homelessness from a place of housing instability is a previous history of homelessness. Homeless assistance is generally the last resort for households in extreme poverty with few resources of their own and limited connections to others who could offer temporary, emergency support. Additionally, when other systems of care, like hospitals, behavioral health settings, child welfare, and criminal justice systems, are unable to address the reasons why people cannot stay housed, people have no alternative than turning to the homeless response system.

To prevent people from falling into homelessness, public systems for justice, antipoverty, prevention, health (including behavioral health), child welfare and affordable housing must use data to identify how people are falling into homelessness and target prevention strategies and policies to address these areas. Additionally, families with children, or unaccompanied youth who are unstably housed and likely to continue in that state, including those people who are doubled up in other people's homes because they lack a home of their own, are not considered to be experiencing homelessness by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and are not eligible for its homeless assistance. These same families are, however, considered to be experiencing homelessness by the U.S. Department of Education and are eligible for additional educational services and supports. People are considered to be "at risk of homelessness" if they are losing their primary nighttime residence, which may include a motel or hotel or a doubled-up situation, within the next 14 days and lack resources or support networks to remain in housing.

Identify priority needs for qualifying populations:

HOME-ARP qualifying populations often have many competing needs. The needs overlap but also vary amongst these populations, and the following information covers the priority needs for each of the qualified populations.

Homeless or At-Risk of Homelessness Populations

The Homeless Coalition of Northeast Alabama identifies and prioritizes the needs of the homeless population. The CoC's Plan outlines goals that address the needs of homeless veterans, people experiencing chronic or near chronic homelessness, homeless families, and youth. As identified in the Community Plan, families and individuals struggling with homelessness would benefit from an improved crisis response system. Although the needs of each group generally overlap, each of these subpopulations may have greater needs than others. Those who are experiencing or are at-risk of homelessness need more affordable housing and shelter options that provide short-term, mid-term, and long-term interventions. Those who are at-risk of homelessness have a strong need for homelessness prevention and stabilizing services, while those who are currently homeless or experiencing chronic homelessness need more street outreach and case management services.

Domestic Violence Populations

Families or individuals fleeing domestic or dating violence need increased safety measures to minimize the risk of returning to unsafe residential environments. This

qualified population has a critical need for temporary shelter for safe harboring and supportive services to help them transition to permanent supportive housing. These families and individuals also need supportive services to assist them like the legal advocacy, childcare, employment services, and case management.

Residents living in housing instability or in unstable housing situations

Many residents who are living in unaffordable or unsafe homes have many needs and face compounded challenges. These households need support with staying housed. While many families may gain stability through rental assistance, other families need more housing options that are safe and affordable. However, most of these households will also need a livable wage and supportive services to create long-term self-sufficiency.

Explain how the level of need and gaps in its shelter and housing inventory and service delivery systems based on the data presented in the plan were determined:

The gaps in services and programs needed to provide shelter, housing, and services were determined using data from multiple sources. The level of need for unsheltered and shelter households experiencing homelessness was determined by evaluating the number of unsheltered households and the level of resources available to adequately house the families or individuals with permanent supportive housing and critical long-term supportive services to achieve housing stability.

For households that are currently housed but have challenges maintaining their home, the level of need was measured by the amount of inventory that had affordable, safe, and adequate living conditions and the number of renter households that are experiencing severe housing cost burdens. These households need assistance that helps them stay housed without incumbering them with the cost of their home.

HOME-ARP Activities

Describe the method for soliciting applications for funding and/or selecting developers, service providers, subrecipients and/or contractors and whether the PJ will administer eligible activities directly:

As with HOME funds, the City will use HOME funds to promote public/private partnerships as a vehicle for preserving and expanding the stock of affordable homes. HOME-ARP funds may be leveraged with private and public funding sources to support activities for supportive services, tenant-based rental assistance, and the production of affordable rental housing.

The City will continue to support eligible activities through nonprofit partners to assist very low-income households and qualifying populations. HOME-ARP funds will be awarded to nonprofit or for-profit organizations, based on the merit of proposals or applications received prior to or during the grant implementation period. For development activities and supportive services, greater preference is given to proposals or applications that have other sources of equity and financing and are in line with the City's priorities.

If any portion of the PJ's HOME-ARP administrative funds were provided to a subrecipient or contractor prior to HUD's acceptance of the HOME-ARP allocation plan because the subrecipient or contractor is responsible for the administration of the PJ's entire HOME-ARP grant, identify the subrecipient or contractor and describe its role and responsibilities in administering all of the PJ's HOME-ARP program:

The City will not allocate funds to a subrecipient or contractor to administer the entire HOME-ARP grant.

Use of HOME-ARP Funding

Funding Category	Funding	Percent of	Statutory
runding Category	Amount	the Grant	Limit
Supportive Services	\$0.00		
Acquisition and Development of Non-	\$0.00		
Congregate Shelters	ψ0.00		
Tenant Based Rental Assistance	\$20,000.00		
(TBRA)	Ψ20,000.00		
Development of Affordable Rental	\$1,216,315.65		
Housing	Ψ1,210,010.00		
Non-Profit Operating	\$ 0.00	5%	5%
Non-Profit Capacity Building	\$ 0.00	0%	5%
Administration and Planning	\$ 218,173.35	15%	15%

Total HOME ARP Allocation	\$1,454,489.00	100%	
---------------------------	----------------	------	--

Table 4: Use of HOME-ARP Funding

Additional narrative, if applicable:

Table 6 shows the HOME-ARP budget, which indicates the amount of HOME-ARP funding that is allocated for each eligible HOME-ARP activity type including administrative and planning costs within HOME-ARP statutory limits.

Describe how the characteristics of the shelter and housing inventory, service delivery system, and the needs identified in the gap analysis provided a rationale for the plan to fund eligible activities:

The City has identified activities that will assist families and individuals of the most vulnerable qualified populations. The gap analysis shows that there is a need to strengthen the City's crisis response system to identify those experiencing homelessness, prevent homelessness when possible, connect people with housing quickly, and provide services when needed. One of the major gaps in the City's homeless inventory is access to affordable housing. People experiencing housing crisis or fleeing an unsafe situation need to find a place to stay quickly. Access to this type of housing is a current gap in the system. Emergency shelter and interim housing can help to fill this gap to strengthen the crisis response system. Unlike other existing funding sources, like HOME grants, the HOME-ARP grant provides an opportunity to assist households with temporary supportive housing through the acquisition and development of non-congregate shelters. These shelters will not only help those experiencing homelessness, but they will also assist families or individuals who fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence and sexual assault.

Many of the families or individuals who receive assistance to mitigate homelessness or to flee violent circumstances require wrap-around services with their housing because of the compounding challenges they face. The City will continue to support organizations that provide supportive services to help program participants achieve self-sufficiency.

Among the most vulnerable qualified populations in jeopardy of housing instability are families and individuals who have challenges with housing affordability. Almost 30% of all renters in City cannot afford their home because they are either cost burdened or severely cost burdened. Cost burdened households spend between 30% and 50% of

their income on housing cost while severely cost burdened households spend over 50% of their income on housing costs. To help keep families housed and address affordability challenges within the housing inventory, the City will fund activities that provide rental assistance to qualifying populations. Tenant-based rental assistance will be administered by local nonprofits or public agencies that support families or individual who are at-risk of homelessness.

HOME-ARP Production Housing Goals

Estimate the number of affordable rental housing units for qualifying populations that the PJ will produce or support with its HOME-ARP allocation:

The City anticipates supporting a total of 18 affordable rental housing units for qualifying populations.

Describe the specific affordable rental housing production goal that the PJ hopes to achieve and describe how it will address the PJ's priority needs:

The City of Anniston will utilize HOME-ARP funding to provide 18 affordable rental units for veterans and persons who are at risk of homeless which will assist in the City's efforts to reducing homelessness.

Preferences

Identify whether the PJ intends to give preference to one or more qualifying populations or a subpopulation within one or more qualifying populations for any eligible activity or project:

During and after the housing crisis caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, HOME-ARP qualifying populations in City need support to improve their resilience. These vulnerable families and individuals experience compounded obstacles, including housing cost burden or living in poor housing conditions. Because of this, the City will use HOME-ARP to help house or keep these families or individuals housed through eligible activities such as non-congregate shelter, rental assistance, and supportive services.

Based on the need and gap analysis, the City will prioritize families and individuals that are experiencing or at-risk of homelessness. In addition to housing instability, homeless individuals are more susceptible to acute health concerns, physical or sexual assault, and drug and alcohol abuse, making them some of the most vulnerable populations and

in need of specialized and intense services. Because of the great need for supportive housing to assist both adult and youth homeless individuals, the City will prioritize those who are experiencing or at-risk of homelessness. Housing or shelter assistance will support these families or individuals leaving homelessness. The City will also give priority to families or individuals who fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence and sexual assault. With the increase in domestic violence following the COVID-19 pandemic, more families will require housing and supportive services.

If a preference was identified, explain how the use of a preference or method of prioritization will address the unmet need or gap in benefits and services received by individuals and families in the qualifying population or category of qualifying population, consistent with the PJ's needs assessment and gap analysis:

To improve the quality of life for program participants, the City will support activities that prioritize families and individuals who are the most vulnerable within the qualified populations who are likely to have great compounded challenges that require more intensive supportive services to achieve and maintain housing stability. These qualifying populations require assistance transitioning to housing, including permanent supportive housing, along with short-term or long-term supportive services like case management, healthcare, legal services, and other supportive services. With better housing options and wrap-around services, these families will have a higher likelihood of becoming self-sustaining over time.

If a preference was identified, describe how the PJ will use HOME-ARP funds to address the unmet needs or gaps in benefits and services of the other qualifying populations that are not included in the preference:

Other qualified populations like veteran households or households who are at or below 50% AMI and experiencing housing problems will be eligible to receive rental assistance or supportive services. As stated in prior sections, these families and individuals have difficulty affording a rental home and have a great risk of having housing instability. The City will fund eligible activities that also support the stabilizations of these households, which will alleviate affordability challenges, overcrowding, and unsafe living conditions.

HOME-ARP Refinancing Guidelines

The City does not intend to use HOME-ARP funds to refinance existing debt secured by multifamily rental housing that is being rehabilitated with HOME-ARP funds.